


***RESCHEDULING QF**x

SPECIAL COMMITTEE MEETING
TO PROBE OIL PRICE INCREASES

The

Assembly Consumer Affairs Committee
and the
Assembly Energy and Environment Committee
will hold a joint meeting on

**XMONDAY, AUGUST 27, 1990 beginning at 1:30 p.m.***
at the State House Annex, ***RQOM 424.***

To accommodate those interested parties who are participating in the annual meeting of
the Coalition of Northeastern Governors on Thursday, August 23rd in Boston,
Massachusetts, the special committee meeting has been rescheduled for Monday, August
27th.

The purpose of this joint committee meeting is to investigate the recent increases in retail
gasoline and heating oil prices and to develop legislative initiatives which will prevent New
Jersey consumers from being victimized by illegal price gouging in the future.

The public may address comments and questions to David L. Sallach, aide to the Assembly
Consumer Affairs Committee, or Spiros J. Caramalis, aide to the Assembly Energy and
Environment Committee. Persons wishing to testify should contact Selena Lewis.
secretary, at (609) 984-0231. Persons presenting written testimony should provide 10
copies to the committee on the day of the hearing.
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ASSEMBLYMAN ROBERT G. SMITH (Co-Chairman): Good
afternoon. My name is Bob Smith. I represent the 17th
Legislative District. I am co-chairing this meeting with
Assemblyman David Kronick from Hudson County. We have on the
panel, starting on my right: Assemblyman Joe Mecca -- Joe, if
you would just raise your hand; on our left, Assemblyman Neil
Cohen from Union County, and Assemblyman Walter Kavanaugh from
Somerset County.

We have a list of witnesses, so we will Kkeep our
comments very brief. Assemblyman Kronick has asked that I
express to the assembled audience that there are a number of
issues that we want to take a look at today. The first issue
is whether or not, in fact, gasoline gouging has occurred and
continues to occur in the State of New Jersey, and are our
citizens being taken advantage of? And secondly, should we, as
a State, have a gasoline gouging statute, one providing for
strict penalties and fines in the event the State can show that
gasoline gouging has occurred, and also requiring the return of
illegal profits in the form of treble damages?

In addition to that, what should the State of New
Jersey be doing to encourage energy conservation in the future,
so that we are not continually at the mercy of foreign oil
supply and foreign o0il crises?

That, Mr. Co-Chairman, is a brief overview, as we
understand the issues. Is there anything you would like to add
to that?

ASSEMBLYMAN DAVID C. KRONICK (Co—-Chairman): Thank
you, Assemblyman Smith. I would 1like to just make a formal
statement. You have pretty much covered it. The purpose of
this Jjoint public meeting is to determine 1if New Jersey'é
consumers are being abused, and whether the sudden escalation
of gasoline and heating o0il prices is Jjustified? Since the
Iragi invasion of Kuwalt on August 2, Jgasoline prices in New
Jersey have risen approximately 11 cents to 20 cents a gallon,



and what 1s most disturbing 1is that gasoline prices were up
three cents to five cents or more per gallon just two days
after the invasion. Now critics charge that many oil companies
showed little restraint and took advantage of the crisis in the
Middle East by gouging the consumers of New Jersey.

It is my belief that the increased prices of gasoline
are unwarranted and were premature, if one considers that there
is no supply problem in the State and oil inventories are
relatively high. Speculation of future prices should not
result in higher prices for o0il which was purchased at lower
prices prior to the invasion.

In addition, there is a lack time between four to six
weeks from the date oil is purchased to the time it reaches the
shores of the United States and is refined. Therefore, the
existing reserve should have delayed the price increases.
Perhaps today we are going to hear something else that will
discount what I just said, because I learned a little something
over the past few days that will perhaps temper what I have
just said. So I want to qualify that.

Many of the citizens contend that the 0il companies
have overreacted and overcharged, and if this is proven, then
the State must take action now to prevent gasoline price
gouging in the future.

Okay, without any further ado, I think we will call

our first speaker, and that will be Mr. Douglas Eakeley, First
Assistant Attorney General. Mr. Eakeley, please.
ASST. ATT. GEN. DOUGLAS S. EAKELEY:
Good afternoon. I am very pleased to be here this afternoon
on behalf of the Attorney General, Robert Del Tufo, who,
unfortunately -- or, unfortunately for me perhaps, but ndt for
him -- 1is in Washington this afternoon conferring with our
drugs czar, Mr. Bennett, and a number of other attorneys
general about the national drug policy.



In any event, I have been asked to come before you to
describe for you the evolving role of the Attorney General's
Office in responding to the recent and disturbing increases in
the prices of gasoline and home heating oil.

Governor Florio has wisely and swiftly moved to
mobilize the appropriate department heads to monitor the gas
and o0il markets for telltale signs of wunfair practices or
collusio:n among retailers, wholesalers, and refiners. At
present, State and Federal investigative efforts have been
focused primarily on the retail and refinery levels, but we are
finding that we need a great deal more information about the
middlemen, the wholesale firms that distribute petroleum
products to the retail outlets where, as we all know, the
consumer ultimately bears the burden of any unfair pricing
activity.

We are working closely with the Division of Consumer
Affairs and the Board of Public Utilities to monitor pricing
activities at all levels, to determine whether those prices are
the product of a normal response to market conditions or the
result of 1illegal actions. We are also making sure that we
coordinate our efforts with those of our sister states and the
Federal govetnment.

Patricia Royer, Director of the Division of Consumer
Affairs, will detail for you our policing of the market under
the Consumer Fraud Act. But I want to talk to you about our
perspective on worrisome prospects for petroleum supplies due
to the current crisis in the Gulf.

The essential fact about o0il is that it 1is an
international commodity of prodigious importance to Western
economies. It is traded on world markets on a spot and futures
basis, as well as under more stable contract arrangements. But
it was often the focus of superpower politics. The potential
for supply interruptions 1is always with us, given the crucial
role played by o0il products in industrial economies and global



rivalries. Obviously it is imperative to police the marketing
of this wvital product for signs of conduct that could
eventually victimize consumers. And it is equally obvious that
the primary job of policing belongs to the Federal government,
given the horrendous economic mischiefs that could be caused by
overconcentration in the market, or by collusion, and the
global nature of the product itself.

That is why we joined the attorneys general of 35
other states last week in insisting that the Federal government
take the 1lead in monitoring the petroleum industry at the
refinery level. On August 20, in the wake of surging gasoline
prices and the reemergence of energy-crisis-related scams, the
National Association of Attorneys General convened a special
meeting in Washington. The NAAG members agreed on a 15-point
plan of action. It is difficult to underestimate the deterrent
effect of the concerted attention of so many law enforcement
agencies nationwide. Aside from our monitoring and enforcement
initiatives in New Jersey, a cooperative effort involving the
Federal government and our sister states is essential to obtain
a global view of  the petroleum markets and identify possible
national patterns of collusive pricing.

Ideally, consumer protection efforts would be taken up
by state governments, the Federal government, and the 50 states
acting together. I won't take the time to go into all 15
recommendations of the National Association of Attorneys
General, but I would like to highlight some of them for you.

First, we have asked that the Federal government
create a task force encompassing every Federal agency that
deals with the petroleum industry, to examine the way spot
market pricing and commodity futures training affect retail
pricing.

Second, Congress was asked to amend its antitrust laws
to provide treble damages for indirect purchase or recovery in
the event of illegal price fixing. Incidentally and closer to



home, we are currently 1looking at similar changes to New
Jersey's antitrust laws to provide for the elimination of what
we call the "indirect purchase or doctrine" here in the State.
That would authorize the Attorney General, among other things,
to initiate suit on behalf of consumers who are victimized by
antitrust activities at levels beyond their immediate sellers.

In addition, the Federal government was urged by the
National Association of Attorneys General to give top priority
to its antitrust investigation of refiners, both independent
and integrative, particularly with respect to deliberate
attempts to manipulate the market in this troubled time.

Thirdly, to enhance the efforts of individual states,
the Federal government was recommended to create a
clearinghouse for the exchange of enforcement information about
suspect pricing practices of wholesalers, retailers, and
refiners, as well as the 1impact of such practices on the
petroleum-dependent industries such as transportation.

‘ Fourthly and finally in this regard, we have also
called upon the o0il industry to exercise voluntary restraint,
cooperating with Federal investigations, and holding down on
the price of replacement fuel to the best of their ability.

As I said before, Pat Royer is here waiting to tell
you about her war against unconscionable price increases at the
pumé. In the course of our enforcement actions and our
research on the reach of our antitrust statute, we believe we
have found potential gaps 1in our enforcement powers and,
Assemblyman Smith, I think this directs itself a little bit
more to the questions which you declared to be the purpose of
this meeting. We are in the process of looking, ourselves, at
the desirability of a new anti price gouging proposal, to see
whether or not we need this additional weapon in our arsenal of
law enforcement weapons.

We understand that you are working on such a
propnsal. We 1look forward to working with you -- with both



Committees —-- in coming up with something that might serve as a
model for all states. On the one hand, we have the antitrust
laws that provide us with the authority to police the market
for collusive activities. These, as I said, could be enhanced
by the elimination of the indirect purchase or doctrine, and by
the vesting of the Attorney General with the parens patriae
authority to sue on behalf of consumers. That is something I
expect we will be discussing with you in later months.

On the other hand, we have the antitrust laws which
are there, perhaps not as a last resort, but rather difficult

to enforce, because it is very often difficult to detect, and
" then prove, price-fixing conspiracies, but durable weapons
indeed. Equally durable is the New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act.
That Act permits us to investigate and prosecute cases of
unconscionable actions such as price gouging at the consumer
level. In other words, we are firmly of the view that price
gouging at the pump is adequately covered by the Consumer Fraud
Act and indeed, as Ms. Royer will discuss shortly, we are
already taking steps under that Act to investigate some of the
more salient possibilities of price gouging: that we have seen
so far.

On the other hand, the Consumer Fraud Act is arguably
directed, almost exclusively, at the consumer level of price
gouging. While one can make an argument, agéin, that extends
the Act to reach price gouging at the intermediate or refinery
level, it 1is not so clear and we do not have any case law
interpreting the Act to permit us to go after price gouging if
it occurs, as an example, at a wholesale 1level selling to a
retail level, because neither, obviously, is a consumer.

Our proposal that we are 1looking at now would
supplement the New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act, expanding its
applicability in cases of abnormal disruption of the fuel
market. It would apply the Consumer Fraud Act's unconscionable
commercial practices concept which, as I said, applies to



consumers, to transactions between refiners, distributors, and
retailers. This would significantly, we believe, improve our
power to .police the market.

. Retail sales are already subject to the terms which,
incidentally, provide for fines, civil remedies, and treble
damages. Our proposal would speak specifically to the actions
of refiners and distributors, explicitly including them within
the scope of the Consumer Fraud Act, and simultaneously
alerting the industry to the concerns shared by all branches of
government over potential price gouging and unconscionable
burdens on consumers.

A successful bill would set up automatic violations
where there is a gross disparity between the price at the time
of the sale and that immediately before the disruption, or a
gross disparity between the price at the time of the sale and
that otherwise available in the trade area, or when there is a
gross disparity in the seller's markup or a profit margin at
the time of the sale and that immediately prior to the
disruption, provided, of course, that those disparities are not
attributable to increased costs.

A strong bill would also forbid any actions which
would ‘create fuel shortéges, and would require periodic
reporting of fuel storage levels and prices. Such data would
be a powerful tool to prevent collusive pricing in the future.
Never again would we be in a position of suspecting illegal
pricing but have no hard data to rely upon. Here I am talking
primarily at the wholesale level. We have good field
investigation at the retail level. The Federal government does
a pretty good job in collecting information at the refinery
level. The BPU does a very good job indeed as well, but there
is this gap just 1in the information available to us with
respect to the nature and structure of the wholesale and
distribution aspect of the fuel market in this region. Again,
I am talking about both gasoline and home heating oil
structure, pricing, and information.



Finally, our proposal would require fuel merchants to
disclose the price of fuel prior to delivery. This provision
would give purchasers the opportunity to reject delivery if
there has been an unsatisfactory change in price, and ensure
that consumers could take delivery with full knowledge of the
price, rather than being forced to accept and pay for products
which are unreasonably priced. Again, this is in response to
something we have seen in the past, but have seen much more
recently in the delivery of home heating oil at prices that
are, when delivered, higher than those which had been quoted
even the preceding day on the telephone.

As you can see, we intend to attack this problem on a
broad investigatory and enforcement front. We want to work
with your Committees toward this goal, and are confident that
together we can create and implement a strong anti-gouging
statute. ‘

Thank you for the opportunity to testify before you
today. If there are any questions, I would be happy to try to
answer them.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: Thank you, Mr. Eakeley. Do any
members have questions? Yes, Assemblyman Kavanaugh?

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. For
clarification, Mr. Attorney General, I wonder if you could give
us a breakdown of the various 1levels? You used the term,
"refiners, wholesalers, retailers," and then you brought in
distributors. I wonder if you could give us how that breakdown
-— those levels are on gasoline, and also then on home heating
0il? What do you mean by-— As far as a refiner, I think it
would be the same on gas and oil. Wholesaler on gas and oil--
I wonder what you mean by that, and then distributor gas and
oil, and retailer?

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: I can't be
terribly precise because we aren't terribly precise when we get
to the intermediate 1level, and there are several diffe:ent
levels within that intermediate level. But the refiners are



either the integrated refiners, such as Exxon, for example, or
the independent refiners who sell -- distribute their products
to the market through patterns wutilizing the services of
wholesalers; actually so do the integrated refiners, as well.
The retailers, obviously the home heating o0il services
delivered to the homes, or the gasoline stations delivered to
the motorists. The word "distributor" is intended to pick up
everyone virtually in-between the refiner -- the refiner of the
product -- and the retail. There is no precise way to define
it, other than by the functions we use -- wholesaler or
distributor.

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Through you, Mr. Chairman, as
far as fuel oil, don't you think it is a little different? 1In
most cases, fuel oil is from the refiners to the retailers, or
the “"distributors," where with gasoline there is the
possibility that you would have a wholesaler in the middle
there? So, even though it is an o0il product, as far as the
distribution method, there is somewhat of a difference between
No. 2 home heating oil and gasoline.

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: I can't—-— That
may be, but I don't know the answer to that.

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: All right. Well I mean, as
far as in our discussions 1if this goes through, I think it
should be understood that there is.

The other point, through you, Mr. Chairman, 1is: You

said a ‘"price prior to delivery," when talking about home
heating 0il. In most cases, dealers, in order to keep their
overhead down -- those who are full service dealers -- have
automatic delivery customers who are on degree days. What
would your intent be if someone has -- say, the average dealer

—— 1if he has 1000 or 1500 or 2000 accounts, with the vast
majority of those on automatic delivery? Would you then ask
that prior to making delivery each day, or the night before, on
his home heating customers, he would try to reach them by
telephone and say, "The price of o0il is such and such"?




ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: Our concern 1is
with what would border on, or constitute an unconscionable
practice; advising a consumer that the home heating oil is
available at a particular price, and then delivering it and
charging another higher price without prior notification, a
practice which would also prevent the consumer from shopping
around and finding a cheaper source of product.

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Through you, Mr. Chairman, the
only thing is -- another thing as far as clarification -- I
think with what you are going to do, the end result would e a
higher cost to the consumer 1if you would mandate that a
retailer would have to have, on his automatic delivery
customers, either a call or something. In most cases, it would
be very difficult to locate people, either during the day or
during the evening. You would have to put on another shift in
order to do that. These are points, I think, in the discussion
where we have to be very careful about what decisions we are
going to make.

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: I agree with that
entirely. I should emphasize that this is ‘a proposal that we
are considering. Obviously, any proposal can bear improvement,
and in order to do that it is important to discuss it and its
possible ramifications.

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Mr. Chairman, I think I should
clarify that, as a 15-year member of the Legislature, I am also
a retail home heating o0il distributor, and a member of the
Fueler Merchants Association, just for the record.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: I was going to mention that you
had-- I thought it would be important that the Attorney
General know that.

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: I sensed that I
was dealing with an expert.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: We have an expert sitting up
here, yes. Are there any fur:her questions?
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ASSEMBLYMAN SMITH: Just a brief one, if I might, Mr.
Chairman. Mr. Eakeley, most of the-—- You mentioned gaps in
coverage in our existing statutes. A question on that: First
of all, normally when we think about gasoline gouging or
consumer fraud, we normally think of the remedy as civil
damages; some kind of monetary penalty or return of 1illegal
profits. But if you 1look at the big picture, I mean, in
effect, a theft is being committed on the public, and we have
other statutes where theft 1is involved which provide for
criminal incarceration. When this Committee considers the
appropriate statutory relief for this problem, does the
Attorney General, at this point, have a position on whether or
not we should also consider criminal penalties as one of the
appropriate provisions of the statute?

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: I don't think we
have a position on it now but, if I may, I would like to offer
this one observation: One of the beauties of the Consumer
Fraud Act —-— and New Jersey was really in the forefront of the
country in establishing the centerpiece of our consumer
protection legislation-- One of  the beauties of that Act is
that in order to take enforcement action, we need not prove
intent or purpose or, really, for that matter, an expectation
of the injury to be caused. That is a very effective provision
if you are going to go after speedy and efficient relief. Once
‘'you start talking about criminalizing something, you make tle
burdens of proof much greater, and I am not sure how much more
you get given the fact that we are able to obtain treble damagé
recoveries under the Consumer Fraud Act as it now stands.

ASSEMBLYMAN SMITH: It would be wvery helpful if the
Attorney General's Office could provide the Committee, through
the Chairs, a memorandum indicating the gaps in coverage that
the AG's Office feels should be filled, so that as we try to
fashion the statutory remedy, we will have, in writing, from
the AG's Office, where you feel those corrections can bf made.

11



ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: Our preliminary
reviews are in my testimony. I had hoped we would get to the
Committee, in advance of my testimony, my prepared remarks, but
we will be happy to at least start with that and then work with
you very closely after that.

ASSEMBLYMAN SMITH: With a more detailed memo to
follow?

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: Yeah.

ASSEMBLYMAN SMITH: Great.

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: Mr. Chairman?

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: Yes, Assemblyman Cohen?

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: Is there anything to preclude the
State from bringing a civil RICO action? '

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: No.

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: So it 1is possible that the RICO
statute could be utilized to fill in any potential gaps which
exist?

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: It is available
and potentially available, as 1is criminal RICO, for that
matter. Again, in terms of proving a RICO violation compared
to a violation of the Consumer Fraud Act, it is quite a bit
different. I should just add that we are also 1looking at
enhancements to civil RICO, but in a different context.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: Assemblyman Scerni, do you have
a question?

ASSEMBLYMAN SCERNI: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Attorney General, you have offered three areas of aufomatic
violation in your testimony today when <certain price
disparities arise. In your opinion, would those particular
areas cover anticipatory profits?

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: What do you mean
by--

ASSEMBLYMAN SCERNI: Let me dress up what I mean by
anticipatory profits, or speaking along the same lires.

12



One analysis of recent events with the Gulf crisis is
that the crisis developed and, in fact, no shortage of crude
0oil occurred, but in anticipation of some suspected future
shortage, that 1is an anticipated shortage, prices basically
went up. This occurs even though at the particular time that
it happens, there is no change in demand; there is no change in
supply. Quite the contrary, rather than a change in supply., we
look around the international world and we see that certain of
the OPEC members are amenable to expanding supplies.

So what we really have is the o0il industry responding
to some anticipated shortage that may or may not occur, and
that as a result of that, prices rise immediately, even though
the costs previously paid by the o0il companies for a product
that is now being sold were considerably lower. Would you
consider the areas that you have proposed a remedy for that
kind of profit taking?

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: Not wunless it
gets to the point where it would constitute what we call a
"gross disparity," either a virually unconscionable increase in
the profits that are not merely the result of an anticipation
of a shortage to come, but rather something that demonstrates
that the company taking the pricing decision has chosen to
exploit the situation and, in effect, gouge the consumer.

Now, anticipating additional costs is fine. One of
the experiences we had that came out of the crisis with home
heating o0il after our very cold December last year was, prices
rose very rapidly indeed, and then didn't come down again. It -
is one thing to anticipate extra costs and to bear them, but
then when the prices of the crude oil return to hopefully a
lower norm, one would expect to see the same kind of alacrity
to lower prices as it was to raise them. But we are really
just attempting to take a rifle shot at gross disparities that
would constitute unconscionable conduct.

13



ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: I would like to mention

something: It is my understanding from the industry -- and I
think there are many people who do not understand this -- that
the prices paid are not-- When it is shipped from the Persian

Gulf, for example, they are really replenishment prices. The
shipment takes approximately 45 days, I understand, and
therefore when it arrives here, it 1is the price of that fuel —
that crude oil. I am sure you are aware of this in your
looking at the situation.

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: Well, I think the
spot market reflects future delivery costs. Obviously, Scott
Weiner, President of the BPU, is much more qualified to discuss
those pricing wvariations than I. But as I understand it,
you've got people who are out there in the spot market right
now paying spot-market prices for replacement crude, and
passing on those costs. There is some discretion as to whether
or not to charge for current deliveries in anticipation of the
future costs upon delivery.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: For purposes of definition, what
- would be your definition for price gouging? How would you
define it?

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: Other than
unconscionable or gross disparity?

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: That's broad, but I guess maybe
for now that is the best we can--

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: What we tried to
do 1is define "unconscionability" 1in this context to 'mean
pricing that is exploitative, that is out of line with the rest
of the industry, that is unjustified by any cost increases of
the same magnitude.

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: Is it similar to Potter Stewart's
comment concerning obscenity; that is, "I know it when I see
it"?

14



ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: Yes, and we have
been able to live very happily with the Consumer Fraud Act for
more —— for almost 20 years as a consequence.

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Mr. Chairman, would it be
similar to an attorney, one charging $50 an hour and another
charging $500 an hour?

ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: I hope that was
rhetorical. (laughter)

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: Yes, it was rhetorical.

ASSEMBLYMAN SMITH: Yeah, that was rhetorical.

UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF COMMITTEE: It was an attempt
at comedy.

ASSTSTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EAKELEY: Now that I am a
public interest lawyer, I can smile at the rhetoric.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: I think, Mr. Attorney General,
that if there are no further questions-- - (no response) There
being none, thank you very much for your input.

Our next speaker will be Scott A. Weiner, President,
Board of Public Utilities. ’

SCOTT A. WEINER: Good afternoon.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: Good afternoon.

MR. WEINER: Thank you for the opportunity, ladies and
gentlemen, to participate today, and to contribute by providing
a brief overview with the role of the Board of Public Utilities
during the past few weeks with respect to the Persian Gulf
crisis, and again, to the Board's role 1in energy policy
formation in the State in general.

I think as all members of the Committee know, the
Board of Public Utilities, and myself as its President, is now
responsible for carrying out and developing the State's energy
policy and initiatives. There has been a lot of discussion in
the past few weeks, and again just a while ago, regarding the
nature of the o0il market and pricing, things and factors that
go into pricing decisions, and with the Committee's indulgence
I am going to forego some comments in that area —— and I will

15



be happy to respond to questions-— I see sitting behind me
many representatives of the o1l industry who I am sure will
provide their own views.

Suffice it to say that I would like to make a few
observations, and also comment -- or follow-up on a comment
that Assistant Attorney General Eakeley just made. In general,
New Jersey has not been suffering from any supply problems, nor
has the rest of the country. There has been an approximate
four million barrel per day deficit caused by the shutoff of
shipments from Irag and Kuwait. Some of that has been made up
by Saudi Arabia. As we meet here today, it is my understanding
that OPEC is continuing its deliberations as to whether or not
it will increase deliveries and production. 1In addition, there
has been some consumer response and conservation response in
the United States.

So, for the time being, we can assume that the
reaction we have seen has not been to an actual supply problem,
nor do we foresee in the immediate future, absent significant
change in events, or circumstances, any concern over supply.
However what we are seeing in New Jersey -- what we are
experiencing here and, in fact, throughout the country -- is, I
suggest, the natural and natiqnal result of the 1lack of any
meaningful energy policy both here in New Jersey and also
throughout the nation as a whole.

For years, the attitude of the Federal government has
generally been to let the market take over in these situations
and, in fact, it did this with a vengence during the past few
weeks. While we certainly support the actions of the Attorney
General, as well as the Federal Trade Commission, the U.S.
Department of Energy, and others, which have initiated the
investigations that Assistant Attorney General Eakeley has
referred to, the situation here in New Jersey and, in fact,
throughout the Northeast and, in fact, throughout the whole
country, are a direct result, I would sucjest, of that lack of
meaningful policy and lack of initiative during recent years.
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In New Jersey during recent years, there has been an
alarming disinterest in energy policy here at the State level.
I think we can look to the organization of the State's energy
policy function and the recent experience over the past couple
of years in the funding that has been provided. As you know,
some years ago, the New Jersey State Department of Energy was
abolished. Those functions remained in what was then known as
the Division of Energy Conservation and Planning, which was
placed within the Department of Commerce. Although then
Commissioner Putnam, I am sure, did a more than adequate job in
trying to attend to those issues, I will tell you from my
firsthand experience as a member of Governor Florio's Cabinet,
that there simply is no substitute for having a Cabinet level
energy portfolio, and that has been indicated today and through
the recent weeks.

Similarly, during Fiscal Year 1988, State funding for
energy activities within New Jersey was approximately $2

million. In Fiscal Year 1989 and Fiscal Year 1990, it
decreased to $104,000. That is a funding level that we had to
maintain in this coming year's budget -- this current year

budget. We feel confident that we will be able to meet our
responsibilities, given the merger of the State energy planning
functions at the Board of Public Utilities. I have said, and I
want to reiterate, that I am often the envy of my colleagues
around the country because here in New Jersey now we have
placed within one department -- one area, if you will -- both
the responsibility'for utility requlations, as well as energy
policy and planning, and that the energy that one would
anticipate is, in fact, taking place.

True, money that has been made available through
Federal grants, through o0il overcharge funds, as well as, I
think, management efficiencies that we have gained through that
merger--— I can report that we will continue to meet our
responsibilities in this area.
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Needless to say, New Jersey has a very big stake in
the outcome of energy planning and policy, and I come here
today to assure you and, through you, the members of the
Legislature, that Governor Florio is not only committed to
seeing that New Jersey is well protected, but also to ensuring
that New Jersey takes a leadership role nationally in helping
to address these questions as a matter of national policy.

Let me take a few minutes to just review New Jersey's
response effective August 1, when the Kuwaiti invasion
occurred: That day, our energy planning staff-- I would just
like to take a moment, as an aside, and introduce to the
Committee, Dr. Fred Grygiel, who is sitting behind my righthand
shoulder. I think Dr. Grygiel is known to many of you. Dr.
Grygiel 1is the Chief Economist at the Board of Public
Utilities. In that capacity, among other things, he oversees
the day-to-day activity of our energy planning and policy
activities.

But Dr. Grygiel immediately mobilized our staff, and
we began daily price monitoring. Again, let me point out that
the price monitoring activity was meant to provide a very
important market commodity, and that 1is information. As I
pointed out a couple of weeks agd in the days following the
invasion, o0il is a free market commodity. We have all learned,
probably more that we knew before, about how free that market
is, and all of the things that it responds to. The oil
industry as a whole had indicated to us during meetings we held
that because of market reactions they were, in fact, exercising
restraint.

Without getting into that debate, it became clear to
us that the appropriate response for New Jersey was to enter
into a market-based environment with market-based tools. That
was information, the ability to shop around, and price around.
There simply was no substitute for information. To that end,
the Board of Public Utilities and the Division of Consumer
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Affairs linked efforts and began what I think has been a very
effective means of trying to get that information out to the
public, so that the public market -- the consuming market --
can take its business to where it saw fit. I know Director
Royer will be talking more about that.

The day following the invasion, Governor Florio asked
that I convene a series of meetings with representatives of the
0il industry, 1in order to 1learn firsthand how they were
planning to respond both from a pricing point of view as well
as from a supply point of view. Those meetings were initiated
on Wednesday, the 8th of August, and have continued since then
to as recently as today.

Let me just summarize by saying that in those meetings

we -- the staff of the Board -- have attempted to 1learn
precisely how an o0il company, both at a retail and oil
distributor 1level, makes 1its pricing decisions. We have
acquired some of that information. I will tell you it is
similar, and consistent with everything we have heard in the
public domain. I don't think there 1is anything surprising or
shocking in that information. I am sure that many of the

people sitting behind me will comment on that.

Also at these meetings we have communicated the
Governor's resolve that he will take all steps necessary to
ensure that New Jersey consumers are protected, are not gouged,
and we have reiterated the Governbr's call that he made on
August 9 that the o0il industry, at all levels, exercise
restraint at this time of national crisis, and work with us and
the State government and with the consumers of New Jersey in
order to hold down these problems.

On the 9th of August, Governor Florio also
communicated with his colleagues at CONEG and, as a result of
that communication, an agenda item was put on last Thursday's
agenda to discuss energy policy with the Northeast Region. As
many of you I think know, and as has been reported recently, as
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a result of the Governor's 1initiative, there has now been
formed a working group known as the Northeast Energy Working
Group, representing each of the CONEG states, and at the
Governor's request, I am going to have the honor of trying to
pull this group together and provide for some regional planning
-— regional interaction. I suspect I will be communicating
with my colleagues in the other CONEG states during the week.

There are a number of 1issues that the Governors
discussed last week that the respective energy commissioners
will be following up on. I want to touch on a few of them
because they are important. One is the use of the Strategic
Petroleum Reserve. Again, there has been a lot of public
discussion about the appropriateness of that reserve for price
stability. The Governor made his view clear last week that it
is an appropriate use, along with the other CONEG Governors.
But as important as that is the fact that the legislation in
Congress -- the Strategic Petroleum Reserve -- 1is out for
reorganization. Hopefully we have all learned from this event
how important this Strategic Petroleum Reserve is.

A somewhat 1little known fact is how the petroleum
reserve works. In the event that there would be a
determination to utilize the reserve and get those commodities
into the marketplace, as a general statement there would be an
auction of the amount of commodity that would be put into the
marketplace. There could be bidding, and then it would enter.
However, the current legislation allows the Secretary of Energy
to take 10% of any allocation and reallocate that as he sees
fit. We are very concerned, here in New Jersey as well as in
the Northeast, that at present there are no regulations, no
guidelines, calling for how the Secretary is going to make that
determination. I think as one looks at the Northeast, there is
dependence, continuing dependence on o0il -- foreign oil,
particularly from the Gulf region -- the need to Kkeep mass
transit operating, and all the :easons why we need oil in this
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area, which make it important that we strive to make sure that
there are regulations in place, or guidelines adopted; that
those criteria are given appropriate weight, in the unfortunate
event that we should ever have to call upon the Strategic
Petroleum Reserve.

We will also be working together at the region to make
our 1input, because of the realities of the Northeast, knowing
the terms of the formation of a national energy policy, and
probably most concretely, will be working among the states in
order to take a look at and analyze the various states' energy
policies and reaction policies and emergency preparedness
policies, to see how we can learn from the best of each other,
and also provide for coordinated regional responses.

There has been some talk -- and it is only in the
talking stages, but I think it is an important concept -- to
think about a Regional Product Reserve, 1if you will, our own
Regional Strategic Petroleum Reserve, to ensure that the
Northeast is adequately supplied.

In short, we will be working together, with the
Governor's leadership, to see that the problems of New Jersey
and the problems of the Northeast are kept in the forefront of
the formation of any policy both here at the State level, as
well as at the national level.

In addition to those activities which are specific
responses to the Kuwaiti invasion and the ongoing activities in
the Persian Gulf, I think the Committee knows that there have
been many ongoing initiatives that have been started over the
past few months dealing with energy policy and energy
conservation, and let me again just briefly mention those, and
then I will be happy to respond to any questions from the
Committee:

Assemblyman Smith, when we last met —-— I guess two or
three weeks ago —- I reported that the BPU was almost ready to
transmit the draft of the Energy Master Plan to the other
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Commissioners who serve on the Master Plan Committee. I can
now report that that transmittal has taken place. On September
6, there will be a meeting of the staffs of the various Master
Plan Commissioners to review that draft document. I anticipate
a meeting of the Commissioners the week following, so that by
the third week of September, I anticipate a Master Plan will be
out in the public domain, and we will also, at that time, be
able to announce a public hearing schedule, another common
period, all as we have discussed, leading, as a working target,
towards adoption of a Master Plan before the end of this
calendar year. '

We have also been, at the Board, reviewing the
emergency regulations which have been in place regarding energy
allocations in the event of an emergency, whether it be a
supply emergency as a result of oil shortages, or, frankly, as
a result of a natural disaster -- an earthquake, a fire, or
some other result that would curtail energy delivery to any
part of the State. We have been working on those reviews
currently, and just last week the Board hosted a meeting with
executives from each of the State's utilities to explore the
possibility, in conjunction with the State's Office of
Emergency Management, of appropriate clearinghouses and field
offices, if you will.

Conservation will hopefully now not just reemerge as
an issue of 1990, but once and for all will emerge as paft of
the public policy fabric of the State and of the nation. To
that end, again the Board has initiated a rule, making
regarding conservation with utilities to take a 1look at the
incentives which would be ©provided both to consumers,
ratepayers, and utilities alike to promote ° additional
conservation. The Energy Master Plan will be replete with
suggestions as to how the State, as a matter of public policy
to the executive branch and the legislative branch, can achieve
that goal. In today's paper, there is a report of the findin's

of a conservation analysis team, a consulting project initiated

22



by the Board to evaluate the conservation projects previously
approved by the Board over the past number of years. Those
projects have shown both some successes that have exceeded our
expectations, as well as those that have fallen well below.
The importance of that document 1is that it will serve as a
concrete tool for us as we evaluate ongoing programs.

Mr. Chairman, let me conclude at this point and just
invite any other questions or comments which the Committee may
have.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: First I want to thank you. I
can see, Mr. Weiner, that it is wunlikely that you and your
staff have had a summer vacation. You have been hard at work
protecting the consumers of New Jersey.

MR. WEINER: We have tried to cycle some R&R through.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: That is important. I was just
wondering, you Kknow, even though we are in the summer -- and
today is certainly a hot, humid day-—— I guess we could start
thinking also about winter, and I was wondering what we are
prepared to do come the heating o0il crisis repeating itself?

MR. WEINER: Well, we are hoping that it won't, of
course. High on our list of items that we have been monitoring
during the past number of weeks has been the impact of home
heating o0il. The Home Heating O0il Association, at both the
retail and wholesale  levels, has been in constant touch with
the Board. I think everyone learned a lesson from last year.

Now, as you know, Assemblymen, there are a number of
pieces of legislation that have been proposed as a result of
last December's experience. In part, I like to think they were
initiated by a study done by the Board and the former Division
of Energy. We are continuidg to work at a staff level with

your staffs to refine that legislation. The importance there
is information -- making sure that information is available in
a meaningful way. I think Assemblyman Kavanaugh's comment

about the reality of how do you move information, particularly
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in the area of long-term contracts, 1s an important one, and
one that we have been looking at. But to produce information,
and also take a look at ways -- and the Board is continuing its
evaluation of requiring minimum on-site inventories of o0il for
interruptable customers, building up in-state supplies, both at
an in-state level and at a consumer level for large industrial
users and also, as I pointed out, through possibly a regional
reserve-— These are things that we will be looking at.

Among the important things that can take place to help
to alleviate, or mitigate against a future event 1like last.
December, other than controlling the weather, of course, is
getting more natural gas into the State. We have been very
active in supporting the Iroquois Project, in trying to get
more supplies into New Jersey in that way. As I have said on
numerous occasions in correspondence to the Federal Energy
Commission, as well as to some of our legislators in New
Jersey, the Northeast region needs all the gas it can get,
whether it is from domestic supplies, Canadian supplies, or
otherwise. As we begin to balance out our energy sources, I
think that will help us.

However, Assemblymen, there is one thing you must keep
in mind: There are two factors that are very real. One is the
weather, and the other is the market. Those are two realities
we face both in home heating o0il, as well as with gasoline and
other petroleum products.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: Thank you. I will open the
questioﬁing to the panel. Assemblyman Smith?

ASSEMBLYMAN SMITH: Mr. Weiner, I thought one of your
comments was particularly on the mark, and that was with regard
to the tremendous decrease in energy planning and conservation
functions in State government over the past several years. I
can remember, as a member of the Minority party in the
Legislature, the Minority party fighting vigorously to Kkeep the
Department of Energy ¢s a separate Cabinet Department within
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State government, and saying at that time that just because we
don't have a crisis now, does not mean that we should not be
doing long-term energy planning and conservation.

I am not pleased to be here today saying, as a group,
to the citizens of the State, "We told you so," but we really

did. You know, there is a saying: "If someone does it to you
once, shame on them. If they do it to you twice, shame on
you." We, as citizens, have been subject, in 1973, 1979, and

now 1990, to the continuing reality that we are completely
vulnerable with regard to our energy supplies; that our economy
is dependent upon the decisions of people all over the world
outside of the United States. That is absolutely an untenable
situation.

The comment you made that I thought was so much on the
mark was your comment that there was a need for a Cabinet level
function to not only regulate energy, but to determine policy:;
that you, as the President of the Board of Public Utilities,
are the envy of your colleagues because both of those functions
have been consolidated in your current position. It would seem
to me that one of the things we should be thinking about as a
Committee, 1s whether or not we need to reestablish the
. Department of Energy as a Cabinet 1level position, with the
consolidation of those functions as you have described, so that
the Board of Public Utilities' President 1is the key to our
energy policy and regqulation in the State of New Jersey. I
think that would put the correct emphasis on the problem, and
would begin to reestablish the fact that New Jersey needs to do
long-term energy conservation and planning. This we have not
done, unfortunately, in the last administration, and it is time
to reemphasize that.

So, one of the things that we are going to look at is
whether there is that need, and we would appreciate anything
that you might be able to forward to us.
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MR. WEINER: Sure. Let me make an initial comment, if
I may.

ASSEMBLYMAN SMITH: Please.

MR. WEINER: As you know, I do serve as a member of
the Governor's Cabinet.

ASSEMBLYMAN SMITH: Right.

MR. WEINER: And, under the structure that has been
put together by Governor Florio, those two portfolios, if you
will, are very active inside the Cabinet room--

ASSEMBLYMAN SMITH: Right.

MR. WEINER: --and, of course, are working with him.
In terms of the ongoing discussion as to whether or not the
Board of Public Utilities or some new structure should be at
full departmental status, I think it is safe to say that right
now we, in fact, function like that, notwithstanding the fact
that we do not have the status. And I will tell you, having
served in my position for seven months, I know that I would
benefit from more than a few more months' experience before I
was in a position to make any recommendations along that line.

The important message I want to leave with you today
is, that singular goal of merging the portfolios and having it
at Cabinet rank has been achieved in this administration. How
that eventually becomes institutionalized--

ASSEMBLYMAN SMITH: Whether it is called that or not.

MR. WEINER: Whether it 1s called that or not, that,
in fact, is happening. And how that becomes institutionalized,
if it needs to become institutionalized, is something which I
would ask the Committee to just give a little more time for us
all to get some experience, to see how they merge. For seven
months' experience, I'll tell you, it has worked very
effectively, and the merger of energy policy and utility
regulation within one group has been very effective and is now
bordering on exciting. I look forward to some very exciting
things as we enter the next year.

26



ASSEMBLYMAN SMITH: My last question: It Dbecomes
pretty clear that the only way we are ever going to become
energy independent, 1is to institute some very vigorous energy
conservation measures. Does the Board of Public Utilities and
the Master Plan deal with that, and could you give us a
30-second summary of what we can look forward to?

MR. WEINER: You can look forward to what I hope you
will think is a very good in-depth analysis of the problem. I
think it does -- 1in all seriousness, Assemblyman-- Energy
independence 1is an 1important goal. I don't know if it is
attainable. I don't think we will ever be truly independent.
"Energy secure" might be a better choice of words. The message
we are trying to convey within the Master Plan, 1is that the
citizens of New Jersey—- Unfortunately, the public
policymakers of New Jersey have not had the opportunity to
control our energy future, both from a consumption level, as
well as from a public policy level. This is going to require
important new initiatives on the part of the integration of
decision-making in the executive branch of the Department of
Transportatidn, my agency, the Department of Environmental
Protection, Commerce and Industry, all the things that one
anticipates. And yet I am happy to report that this energy has
taken place now at the drafting level. What we are trying to
produce, and what we anticipate we will produce in September,
is a discussion document that we do not envision to be the
final word, but to lay out some of the issues and some of the
concerns and the criteria that have to be debated, because in
this document -- the 1990 document —-— we have not yet received
the active input from the energy industries, the utilities, the
oil companies, the public at large, yourselves, as members of
the Legislature.

I am very excited about the process. I think it will
lead us to a blueprint to lead to New Jersey's energy security,
and hopefully be a model throughout the Northeast.
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ASSEMBLYMAN SMITH: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: Thank you. Any other members?
Assemblyman Cohen?

ASSEMBLYMAN  COHEN: I am curious as to your
counterparts across the country, as to what their feelings are,
what 1information they have received? Are prices going up
similar to what they are in New Jersey in Iowa, Arkansas,
Washingon, or is this something that is conincidenally peculiar
to a major area that utilizes a lot of motor vehicle traffic
and such?

MR. WEINER: I think it 1is fair to say that the
experience, in a general sense, has been felt throughout the
country. On the other hand, it 1is going to be 1localized.
There has been extensive commentary that the economies of the
Northeastern states are very reactive to the state of oil
prices. We are seeing that here in New Jersey, as well as
throughout the region. Different parts of the country will
respond differently based upon their o0il consumption patterns.
There was a very interesting article in Saturday's New York
Times that dealt with the impact of o0il prices and utility
prices to the extent that o0il is the feedstock of electric
generation. It was interesting to note that New Jersey was
next to last on the list of Northeastern states. In New
Jersey, 13% of our electric generation comes from oil; 11% if
you bring in our out-of-state purchases.

There are lots of implicit energy questions there, but
I think, Assemblyman Cohen, it 1is safe to say that the
experience has been felt generally throughout the country, but
its impact is localized based upon the economy. There are some
states which have been identified -- our own continental oil
producing states within the continental United States -- that
would serve to gain in terms of an upturn of the economy as a
result of oil prices going up.
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ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: I am just curious in terms of
whether gasoline prices in New Jersey are somewhat
disproportionate to those prices in Iowa?

MR. WEINER: Well, I <can't tell you about Iowa
offhand, but I will, for example--

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: Pick a state.

MR. WEINER: --share with you an experience I had in
Massachusetts when I was trying to take a few days of that R&R
that I discussed. I happened to be on Nantucket Island.

Nantucket Island is an island where everything has to be barged
in. When we arrived on the island, around the seventh or sixth
of August, gasoline was selling for $1.61 a gallon. When I
returned to the island to rejoin my family on Saturday, the
barge had come in and gasoline had gone up to $1.81 a gallon,
telling me two things: that the impact there was a little more
dramatic than we had been experiencing here for all cof those
geographic reasons, but also it was a firsthand example of one
of the things I have been told during my series of meetings,
and that is the retailer's price upon delivery. Gasoline will
always be higher.

New Jersey, I think the Northeast -- I wouldn't just
single out New Jersey -- has experienced some dJgreater price
impacts than some other states, and I will be happy to provide
you andrthe Committee additional information in that regard.

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: I would ask that we obtain
information concerning pricing in other states—-—

MR. WEINER: Sure.

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: -—taking a geographic 1look. I
would ask the same question of Consumer Affairs Director Royer—-

MR. WEINER: Sure. ' ,

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: —--before she comes to testify,
that we could obtain that same information, too. I mean, it is
just so interesting that gasoline prices for cars go up around
June 1. They never go up in November. Heatin  oil-- I have
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never seen heating o0il go up in August. It seems to be an
interesting coincidence, and perhaps we can more information in
the future.

MR. WEINER: I will leave it to other witnesses who
may testify to explain why, but again, keep in mind that we are
operating in a market and that is not surprising -- thét the
market 1s going to respond that way. There are other issues as
to how price elastic -- the experience seems to be in prices
going up and how the elasticity seems to slow up when they are
going down. The point I want to make is not that there 1is
necessarily a quick, easy analysis of a good guy/bad guy
situation, but that there is a market at work. As we saw in
the home heating o0il, the retail sector, back in December,
served as something of a shock absorber for the price impacts
that were being hit. Prices were going up, but not at the same
rate they were going up at the wholesale level. And as prices
began to go down at the wholesalers' spot level, we found out
that retail prices were going down slower.

Now, the argument that was presented on behalf of the
industry, which has some ring of merit to it, was that as they
absorb those losses in the front end of the spiral, they are
going to recoup some of the loss by lessening the decline.
What is important in the experience I have had over the past
few weeks, is that the consumers in New Jersey -- not just in
New Jersey[ but I think nationwide -- were prepared to respond
to higher prices, recognizing that the events of the day were
to cause higher prices. What nobody anticipated was that it
was going to happen as quickly and as fast as it did,
notwithstanding the inventory 1levels, not withstanding all of
the things that the Chairman mentioned before.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: Do any other members have
questions? Assemblyman Scerni?

ASSEMBLYMAN SCERNI: Mr. Weiner, 1is it fair to say
that the BPU does not regulate gasoline pric?s?
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MR. WEINER: It's very fair to say.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCERNI: Should it?

MR. WEINER: No, not at this time.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCERNI: Why?

MR. WEINER: Well, I would 1like to go by analogy.
There are many reasons why one regulates. The traditional
reason for utility regqulation is to provide an artificial
competition in the presence of a monopoly. Whatever problems
we may have in terms of monitoring gasoline prices and being
concerned about the market response, they are not because of
competition. The potential for competition is there, and one
need only look to the experience we have had in the State with
the solid waste industry, where there was a need for regulation
which was identified some 20 years ago, but the model that was
picked was traditionally utility regulation. When that model
was picked, it was 1like trying to put a square peg in a round
hole.

The problem in the solid waste industry to the extent
that it was competition, was not because there was a natural
monopoly occurring. It was because there was a very unnatural
monopoly occurring, which required a different type of
response. I think that in the first instance what we need to
do in terms of the o0il industry is make sure-— We have a
multifaceted approach. Make sure we are getting the type of
information we need, both as public policymakers and as
consumers to make intelligent decisions; to make sure that our
enforcement agencies -- the Division of Consumer Affairs, the
Attorney General's Office are armed with the tools they need in
the event of aberrational pricing, and to very clearly
articuiate what our public policy goals are and regulate around
those goals. Price regulation of gas at the retail level, I am
not ready to support yet.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: Assemblyman Mecca?

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Good afternoon, Mr Weiner.
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MR. WEINER: How are you?

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Part to your testimony was
involved in discussion that Assemblyman Smith picked up on.
That was the question of whether a separate Cabinet position
would be something that would help this State, and perhaps the
other states, by implication, and also whether we need a
separate energy policy in this State? By spending eight months
in goverment in your position now, is that what you hear from
the public, that we need more government, that we need -- that
the public's resolve is to have the government grow to handle
all problems like the one that has arisen in the last month?

MR. WEINER: I don't know that the government has to
grow, and again I am going to limit my remarks to the situation
here in New Jersey, because my experience —-- and I have talked
to my colleagues -- 1s that more often than not, the general
model is that there will be a governmental function, a public
utility commissioner, or a public utilities that deals with
energy regulation -- wutility regulation. There will be a
separate Department of Energy on an energy function -——
sometimes a departmental status, sometimes not -- and then
there will be environmental <concerns and transportation
concerns. If there is a natural synergy between any two which
are energy policy and energy regulation-- That is what has now
occurred in New Jersey. As I pointed out, as a member of the
Governor's Cabinet, in fact, we have that today. We are
providing -- we, this administration -- I think the type of
leadership, in terms of energy policy and formation that, quite
frankly, has been lacking in the past few years. We have been
doing it-- If you compare our current $104,000 appropriation
in that area to a $2 million appropriation just two years ago,
we are doing it through management efficiencies; we are doing
it through the synergy of utility requlation and energy, policy
planning.
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I do think what people are recognizing -- and
hopefully one of the by-products of the Persian Gulf crisis
will be resolved within this country -- that energy policy is
important and it can no longer be shoved to the side and just
left to the whims of the market to send appropriate price
signals. That is a favorite phrase of people. But that as a
society, we have to commit ourselves to energy conservation.

There are things that could be going on now. The
concept of home sealoffs-— That is an important one that seems
to have lost its sexiness, 1if you will, but it 1is no less
important. A simple concept that somebody was talking about
today is keeping tires inflated at the proper air pressure.
That can save literally hundreds of thousands of barrels of oil
a day in this country -- if all tires are properly inflated.
Little things. Other important things: alternative fuels; the
use of renewable resources; energy conservation. These are
things, I think, which our New Jersey communities are going to
be looking to the Governor, to myself, to all of you, and to
all of our colleagues, to provide some leadership and direction
toward. I think we can do that, have done that so far this
year, without incurring a growth in government.

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Would a separate New Jersey policy
be something that would be effective without an adequate
Federal policy? .

MR. WEINER: I think it would have to coincide with
the Federal policy. As I indicated, we anticipate that New
Jersey and Governor Florio will be in the forefront of both the
national policy, as well as developing a State policy. But
there are things that we can be doing here, things 1like
providing incentives for our State's utilities, to provide
meaningful conservation programs; promoting opportunities
within the State; looking at the State government's own use of
energy in terms of retrofitting buildings, in terms of our
automobile fleets, and other things we ~<an be doing.

New Jersey B iy
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As I said, a national energy policy is very important,
and nothing can substitute for it. But to the extent
necessary, we want to see New Jersey leading the way toward
that national policy.

ASSEMBLYMAN MECCA: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: Thank you very much, Mr.
Weiner. Did I see another hand? Yes. Assemblyman Kavanaugh
has a question. This will be the last question.

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: A Republican viewpoint. Thank
you.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: Another point of view.

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Thank you. I would just like
to thank you, Mr. President, for showing the credibility of the
retail oil dealer when you bought up your December example. As
you know, the retailers who have storage put o0il into storage
at 1lower prices and passed them through to the customers,
without gouging. After the storage had to be replenished at
higher prices, they again had to continue those prices until
the storage was replenished at a lower price. But it shows
that they are credible in maintaining their margins.

The example that you brought up on interruptables is
something that I would 1like you to Hhave some insight on,
because one of the reasons for the spike-- Public Service and
other utility compaﬁies which have these interruptables-- I am
somewhat concerned when we talk about gouging where they
brought people on-line at a lower profit to use up the excess
gas, and then when things got tight in December, without
notice, they told these people that they would have to go to
other fuels-- The lack of notice, as an example, the schools
with tanks at minimum, caused havoc in the market. The loss of
the gallonage which would have been available to the retail
people went into the industrial area, the commercial area, the
school areas. I think the example that was given was that some
million-and-a-half gallons a day was just for Public Service

interruptable customers.
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I was wondering if you have any intention, or anything
there, that we could have some type of notice where a person
who is on the interruptable contract would make a decision
prior to the season, or with a notice, so that they would not
cause —-- which was much of the reason for the spike in the
costs of home heating costs--

MR. WEINER: We are looking at that whole area. As I
mentioned, one of the things we are looking at is possibly
requiring minimum inventories for interruptable customers in
the event there is a requirement to move to the alternate fuel,
in this case we'll say o0il; that there 1is some on-site
inventory, so that their entry into the market won't be
instantaneous as what we saw in December.

We are looking at notice provisions. Of course, the
theory behind interruptable pricing and supply is ‘to decrease
0il consumption while gas supply is plentiful, and only when
the gas supplies get tight, to move off of gas back onto the
alternate fuel, sometimes oil. In the <case of one oil
independent electric generator that 1is being proposed in
Linden-- That will be butane as an alternate fuel, but there
are these alternates.

Again, a second solution, or second way to address the
problem, 1is to get more gas into the State through the
construction of additional pipelines. It is something which we
have been working on very hard here during the past couple of
months, which the CONEG Governors are also working on.

So I think, Assemblyman, a combination of those two
things will work. We have received a 1lot of resistance
initially to minimum inventory levels of alternate fuel,
understand at this cost impact. I am about at the point of
arriving at a recommendation that we can't afford not to. It
is somewhat of an added cost, but given the experiences we have
had, we have to maintain those minimum levels.
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ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Another question, through the
Chair: In the Governor's tax package there was A-3612, which
had to do with 2.75% of the gross receipts exempting home
heating o0il, which amounts to some three cents a gallon. Have
you made any recommendations, or have any recommendations come
out of the Governor's Office where we would possibly have a
temporary suspension because of this hike in gas for the
benefit of the customers in New Jersey -- where he could hold
that and suspend it so they would be able to put this three
cents savings into their pockets?

MR. WEINER: No, nothing has come from the Board yet.
I am not aware of anything that has come out of either the
Governor's Office or Treasurer Berman's Office. I am sure if
it does, you will be among the first to know.

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Thank you.

“SSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: Thank you very much.

MR. WEINER: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: Our next speaker has to catch a

plane. I understand he represents the o0il industry, from Amoco
Oil Company, Mr. John Bergman. We are going to shift over now
to the industry side.
J OHN C. BERGMAN: Thank you, Assemblyman Kronick
and Assemblyman Smith for the opportunity to appear here
today. I am John Bergman. I am with the Amoco 0il Company.
With me is John Valesano, who is the Manager of Supply for our
company of both raw material and finished product. I thought
that if members of this Committee had some specific questions
concerning supply 1issues, he might be better qualified to
respond than I might be.

I do have a prepared text and testimony. If you will
bear with me, I will refer to that, and then I will be happy to
answer questions from members of the Committee, should you
desire to ask them of me.
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ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: Have you given the Committee
copies of your prepared testimony?

MR. BERGMAN: We distributed the copies.

ASSEMBLYMAN KRONICK: Okay, you have distributed
them. Thank you. You may begin.

MR. BERGMAN: Thank you. As I said, I am John
Bergman, with Amoco 0Oil Company. I am here today to present
our company's view of why gasoline prices have risen in recent
weeks and in the past month.

I would also 1like to mention that I had the
opportunity to discuss this issue on August 17 with the Board
of Public Utilities 1in Newark, represented by two of the
gentlemen who are here today. I understand that Governor
Florio charged the Board of Public Utilities with the task of
gathering that information.

Before I get too far along, however, I feel it is
important to keep a sense of perspective on this whole issue.
Gasoline prices are a much bigger story than just the gasoline
prices by themselves, and as we sit here the Mideast situation
certainly remains up in the air and extremely perilous, and the
danger of war 1is ever present. Obviously, we all hope that it
doesn't come to that. I am certain that you share the concern
we have for the safety of the many people in the armed forces
who are in the Middle East.

Since Irag's invasion of Kuwait and the resulting
turmoil in world energy markets, Amoco O0il Company has
wholeheartedly accepted President Bush's request of all U.S.
petroleum companies to show extra prudence and restraint 1in
their pricing activities.

On August 9, Amoco froze its nationwide wholesale
price increases -- not decreases -- for gasoline, distillates,
and jet fuel. The freeze was lifted on August 15. Since then
there have been increases 1in certaln markets and, although
Amoco's wholesale prices in New Jersey have increased only two
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cents a gallon from August 15 to the 23, world crude prices
have increased about 10 cents a gallon in that time frame.

For quite a while, Amoco's wholesale product prices
have lagged behind crude o0il price increases. For about five
weeks prior to Irag's invasion of Kuwait, crude oil prices
increased about 11 cents a gallon due to an OPEC production
decision. During that time, Amoco's wholesale gasoline prices
in New Jersey were essentially flat. The invasion of Kuwait
and worldwide supply concerns pushed crude oil prices sharply
higher, roughly another 12 cents a gallon from August 1 through
August 9, at which time Amoco announced its price freeze. For
this entire period, crude oil prices increased over 20 cents
per gallon, while Amoco's wholesale product prices increased
about 10 cents a gallon nationwide, and about eight cents in
the State of New Jersey.

Also, I should mention here that New Jersey's new
gross receipts tax on gasoline of about 3% -- or, I'm sorry,
three cents a gallon, went into effect on July 1, and we don't
think that that should be ignored in any discussion of factors
that influenced retail gasoline price increases.

Amoco has, and will continue to price its products in
a prudent and responsible way during this period of exceptional

- market volatility. Nevertheless, prices have increased
recently, and there is no getting around the fact that major
U.S. 0il companies are easiest to blame for the situation. I

sincerely hope that my remarks today will illustrate that there
are many, many forces influencing retail gasoline prices.

I want to emphasize how important New Jersey 1is to
Amoco 0Oil. We supply about 13% of the motorist gasoline sold
in this State. That makes us the number four marketer here.
We supply North Jersey from our terminal at Carteret, New
Jersey, which is at the end of the Colonial Pipeline, the main
petroleum products pipeline from the Gulf Coast to the
Northeast. South Jers?y 1s supplied by our terminal 1ina
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.
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We have 323 Amoco branded service stations in New
Jersey: 193 of them being leased by independent dealers; and
123 being controlled by Amoco branded jobbers or wholesale

distributors, some of whom are represented here today. Seven
service stations are operated directly by Amoco.

Amoco dealers and jobbers are independent
businesspeople who set their own retail prices according to
competitive conditions. Stations controlled by Amoco -- the
seven that I mentioned -- also price according to 1local
competition.

Now, we often remark on how competitive the market
is. I should actually say "markets," rather than "market,"
because there is competition at every level. There is

competition in the crude oil market, wholesale product markets,
and in the retail market, as evidenced by the buying prices you
see at your local service stations. While the markets are
related, they don't always react at the same time or with the
same speed.

We are co‘ntinually charged, as an industry, and also |
as a company, with making an unjustified profit on crude oil
that was pumped out of the ground and paid for 45 days prior to
the time it was used, or the time it takes for a tanker to
reach the United States from the Persian Gulf. Now, this might
sound logical, but it really doesn't square with the facts
anymore. The truth is, there is really no such thing as old
0il or delayed pricing.

More than 80% of the world's crude oil is priced on
delivery according to a formula based on spot market prices.
When we contract for a cargo of crude oil, we don't know what
it is going to cost us until it is delivered to one of our
refineries, and, Assemblyman Kronick, I believe you commented
on information you received within the last few days concerning
that fact. That, by the way, 1s a change from 10 years ago, or
from the time of the last shortage when, 1in fact, contracts
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were established ahead of time on price as well as on volume.
Those situations have changed, and I commend you for getting
that information and relaying it during this hearing.

Higher «c¢rude o0il <costs have to be reflected 1in
wholesale refined product prices, in order to allow us to earn
enough to replace the higher cost crude o0il to keep our system
going. These replacement costs are reflected immediately.

Our service station dealers are caught up in the same
forces as we are. A dealer sets retail prices with an eye
toward replacement costs also. Events in the Mideast have
pushed crude o0il prices to a five-year high. This has meant
higher gasoline prices for consumers, and I know that our
customers and the consumers do not like this. We certainly
can't blame people for that. None of us like higher prices on
anything we buy. But it might help to remember that the market
forces can drive prices down, as well as up. Perhaps you
recall how crude oil prices fell abruptly in 1986, when Saudi
Arabia increased its production beyond what the market could
absorb. Back then, we had crude oil in the $9 to $10 per
barrel range, which was reflected in correspondingly low retail
gasoline prices. In fact, those developments greatly
accelerated the influence of the spot market, since people were
increasingly unwilling to hold fixed price contracts for oil
priced at the time of production.

Now, a 1lot is Dbeing written today about global
corporations and the global economy. Plenty of this 1is
academic wishful thinking, but the o0il business is the real
thing. We say that, in fact, it 1s truly global. In the
current situation, events in Iraq are reflected at retail
service stations in Newark with astonishing speed, as worldwide
communications are almost instantaneous.

The spot  market for crude oil reflects the
minute-by-minute opinion of 1literally thousands of interested
people. Today, with a serious threat of war in the Persian
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Gulf, there is a huge degree of uncertainty, which has resulted
in a much more wvolatile market, as well as higher c¢rude oil
prices. Crude o0il, no matter where 1in the world it is
produced, is priced on the world market. Persian Gulf oil is
low production cost oil. In the United States it 1is high
production cost o0il. No matter what it costs to produce it,
the price for crude oil is set on a world market. The United
States imports about half, or 50% of the o0il it refines.
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